I. Introduction 

This is an appeal on the very narrow issue of whether the trial court 

properly imposed sanctions on defendant's prior attorney, and if sanctions 

are appropriate, whether the amount was proper. There are, unfortunately, 

literally thousands of pages in the court file. Fortunately, however, very 

few of them pertain to this appeal. 

The underlying case was made unnecessarily complicated by plaintiffs 

attorney. And, contrary to the plaintiffs designation of clerk's papers, this 

appeal does not require review of voluminous documents. The majority of 

time in this case has been spent by plaintiffs' attorney's desperate attempts 

to divert the court's attention away from the fact the alleged problems 

were the result of his own failures and errors. 

Despite a succession of motions, affidavits, duplicate filings, and 

irrelevant documents, the matter at issue in this appeal limited to the sole 

question of the judgment of sanctions imposed against attorney Miller who 

was not a party to the case, and was not afforded due process. 

II. Assignments of Error 

a. Assignment of Error No. 1. The trial court failed to 

conduct evidentiary hearing before issuing findings of fact 



and conclusions of law and judgment of sanctions thereby 

violating attorney J. Scott Miller's due process rights. 

b. Assignment of Error No.2. The trial court failed to 

properly consider lesser sanctions before imposing 

sanctions against attorney J. Scott Miller. 

c. Assignment of Error No.3. The trial court failed to 

recognize the culpability of plaintiffs' counsel in his failure 

or refusal to notify defense counsel of alleged errors in 

discovery responses regarding possible other insurance. 

d. Assignment of Error No.4. The trial court failed to 

properly calculate sanctions by incorrectly including time 

spent by plaintiffs' attorney on matters not resulting from 

sanctionable acts or omissions by attorney J. Scott Miller. 

e. Assignment of Error No.5. The trial court improperly 

imposed sanctions on attorney J. Scott Miller for allegedly 

negligent acts/omissions by attorney Crystal Spielman 

and/or defendant William Vue regarding family 

relationships of the defendants, existence of other 

insurance, and/or ownership of the vehicle operated by 

William Vue. 
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III. Statement of the Case 

a. Procedural Background 

A Summons and Complaint in the underlying case was filed 10116/2003 

(CP 1-6), and an Answer with Affirmative Defenses was filed by 

defendant Vues on 01105/2004 (CP 7-10). Following discovery the matter 

was settled for Allstate's policy limits) and the case dismissed with 

prejudice with prejudice on 06/24/02004 (CPII-12). 

Aasebys' attorney obtained an Order to Show Cause on 06/22/2005 (CP 

13 ) after claiming that discovery responses provided by defendants2 failed 

to disclose a Farmers Insurance policy that may have been available. An 

Order vacating the dismissal was entered by Judge Austin on 07/0112005 

(CP 19-21). Prior to entry of the vacation order, Vues' former defense 

counsel (appellant Miller) withdrew and a Notice of Substitution of 

Counsel was entered on 06/28/2005 (CP 17-18)3. 

The record shows that cross motions were heard on 12116/2005 and that 

the court took those matters under advisement. (CP 27). Judge Austin 

I Allstate insured the vehicle being operated by William Vue and owned by Vilay Vue. 
2 The discovery responses were prepared by and signed by William Vue, and the attorney 
attestation clause was signed by attorney Crystal Spielman (WSBA 34194). 
J It is important to note that after Miller's firm withdrew from defending Vues, and 
McMahon's firm filed a notice of substitution, Miller never filed any pleadings on behalf 
of any named defendant, and that all pleadings filed by Miller after June 2006 were filed 
solely on his own behalf. 
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subsequently issued two letters on 0212112006, one addressing a motion to 

intervene filed by Farmers Insurance (CP 29-31) and the other addressing 

sanctions sought by the plaintiffs (CP 32-37). Those letters were used as 

the basis for plaintiffs Motion for Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 

Law seeking to have sanctions imposed against both of defendants' 

attorneys, Miller and Spielman (CP 78). The court heard argument on 

06/2312006 but declined to sign the plaintiffs' proposed findings and 

conclusions. (CP 681-715). And, in fact, no order was ever entered 

following that hearing. (CP 93). 

At a hearing on 08125/2006 Judge Austin ordered counsel for both parties 

jointly to initiate a declaratory judgment action to resolve the question of 

whether there had been an additional insurance policy available to 

defendants that had not been disclosed in discovery before the case was 

settled and dismissed with prejudice. (CP 168-173, and CP 171 11.20-25). 

He also noted that "If there isn't coverage, then I think the matter is pretty 

much at an end." (CP 16911.22-24). 

The record shows that following a variety of motions, Judge Austin 

entered a Stay Order in the underlying case on 0211312007 pending 

outcome of the DJA. Miller was not noticed or included in any of the 

motions. 
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It appears that the parties did not comply with Judge Austin's order to 

initiate a declaratory judgment action. Instead, Farmers Insurance filed a 

DJ A. So for the next several years plaintiffs' attorney redirected his efforts 

to a series of unsuccessful attempts to prove that the Farmers Insurance 

policy provided coverage for the accident at issue in the underlying case. 

On June 1, 2007 Judge Leveque granted Farmers' motion for summary 

judgment finding there was no coverage under that insurance policy (CP 

122-123) which was upheld by this court in an unpublished opinion on 

July 9, 2009, and the Washington Supreme Court denied review. (Farmers 

Ins. Co. v. Vue, 151 Wash. App. 1005,2009 WL 1941991, rev. den. 167 

Wn.2d 1015 (2009). 

Judge Austin retired in 2008 while the Farmers Insurance DJA was 

pending. In October, 2010 Judge Linda Tompkins was assigned to preside 

over the underlying case. There were a series of orders entered regarding 

case scheduling between October, 2010 and March, 2011. However little 

else of significance pertaining to this appeal occurred until 03/04/2011 

when plaintiff s attorney suddenly served a motion for sanctions against 

Miller (CP 124-125)4. 

4 This was time since June 2006 that Miller had been served with ill!Y pleadings, and the 
first time there was any document filed indicating he still had a connection to the 
underlying case. 
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Of particular note, however, is the motion filed by Defendant March 22, 

2006 to file a Supplemental Answer (CP 38-44) that was intended to 

correct inadvertent (and harmless) errors in the original Answer regarding 

(1) the family relationship between the named defendants, and (2) 

clarifying ownership of the car. Instead of embracing this attempt to 

clarify the record, plaintiffs' attorney vigorously resisted the motion. 

On April 24, 2006 attorney Delay filed a Declaration (CP 45-48) to which 

he attached a letter he received June 29, 2005 in which attorney McMahon 

clarified both the vehicle ownership issue and the defendants' family 

relationship before the 07/01/2005 show cause hearing at which the 

judgment was vacated. (CP 47-48). 

It is clear, therefore, that before the order vacating the dismissal with 

prejudice was entered in July, 2005 (CP 19-21), plaintiffs' attorney had all 

the information he now claims was not available until he spent countless 

hours for which he seeks sanctions. 

After the motion filed in March, 2011 the procedural history and pleadings 

become confusing, probably because plaintiff s counsel was trying to 

juggle three separate and unrelated matters: the first was the trial in the 

6 



underlying cases, the second was a request for sanctions asserted against 

Miller6, and the third was a succession of motions against the defendants' 

attorneys that substituted for Miller7 when the Order of Dismissal was 

vacated in 2004. Unfortunately, the motions and related pleadings are not 

clearly delineated in the docket, and even when reading the pleadings it is 

clear that plaintiffs' counsel conflated many of the issues8. 

Judge Austin's retirement is a watershed event in this case. Judge 

Tompkins incorrectly thought that she was merely memorializing Judge 

Austin's prior rulings. But the record clearly shows no such rulings were 

ever made, and the subsequent orders and judgments are improper. 

The following procedural events occurring after Judge Tompkins took 

over the file are significant with respect to the sole issue of sanctions 

involved in the pending appeal: 

Plaintiffs Motion for Sanctions March 4, 2011. Plaintiffs filed a motion 

for judgment for sanctions after no mention of the subject since Judge 

Austin refused to sign plaintiffs proposed findings and conclusions in 

5 Because the case originally had been settled for Allstate's policy limits and dismissed 
with prejudice, there had been no trial. By convincing Judge Austin in 2004 to vacate the 
dismissal the case was put back on the trial docket. 
6 For alleged acts and omissions prior to the case being settled and dismissed with 
prejudice. 
7 Law firm of Carlson, McMahon & Sealby, PLLC and attorneys Patrick McManon 
(WSBA 18809) and David Force (WSBA 29997). 
8 Whether this was intentional or the result of inattention is still undetermined. 
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June, 2006. The matter was addressed in a series of hearings beginning 

March 4,2011 and concluding with a hearing on June 23, 2011. 

1. Plaintiffs motion for judgment for sanctions dated 03/04/2011 (CP 

124-125) 

a. Memorandum in support with exhibits (CP 95-123) 

b. Proposed Findings and Conclusions (CP 126-144) 

2. Miller's Objection to Plaintiffs Motion dated 0311712011 (CP 145) 

a. Memorandum of Authorities (CP 146-152) 

b. Declaration of Miller with exhibits (CP 153-177) 

c. Declaration of Lisa Mittleider with exhibits (CP 191-204) 

d. Second Declaration of Miller with exhibits (CP 205-215) 

3. Miller's Motion for Evidentiary Hearing dated 03/3112011 (CP 

254) 

a. Memorandum of Authorities (CP 239-253) 

4. Hearing on Plaintiffs motion for judgment on sanctions imposed 

on Miller at which Judge Tompkins purportedly "recognizes Judge 

Austin's decision of December 15,2005." (CP 255l 

5. Affidavit of Delay dated May 20, 2011in support of imposing 

sanctions lO. (CP 257-279). 

9 There is no document in the court's record to indicate Judge Austin's decision on 
December 15,2005. The Courtroom Minutes from that date indicate Judge Austin took 
the cross motions for summary judgment under advisement. (CP 27). 
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6. Declaration of attorney Peter Witherspoon (WSBA 7956)11 dated 

05/24/2011 objecting to court rule violations by attorney Delay by 

disregarding filing deadlines for pleadings associated with requests 

for sanctions. 

7. Memorandum of J. Scott Miller Relating to Reasonableness 

Hearing dated 05/26/2011 (CP 283-290). 

8. Affidavit of Delay dated 0611412011 requesting additional costs as 

sanctions with exhibits. CP 313-312). 

9. Proposed findings and conclusions dated 05/20/2011 signed by 

Judge Tompkins and filed 06116/2011, granting the plaintiffs' 

motion for sanctions filed 03/04/2011. (CP 340-373). 

a. Courtroom Minutes dated 06116/2011 (CP 388). 

b. Transcript of the hearing held 06116/2011. (CP 552-587) 

10. Plaintiffs 06123/2011 response to Witherspoon's 06/23/2011 

letter, with attachments.(CP 389-393). 

11. Transcript of hearing on 06/23/2011 for presentment of judgment. 

(CP 641-677). 

10 The declaration includes time Delay claimed for sanctions against both Miller and his 
firm as well as against McMahon and his firm. 
II Witherspoon represented Miller from 0311 8/20 II (CP 217) until 06/28/20 II (CP 404-
405). After Witherspoon withdrew Miller filed a limited notice of appearance (pro se) on 
0711 112011. (CP 545). 
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12. Judgment Summary against J. Scott Miller and the law firm of 

Miller, Devlin, McLean & Weaver, P.S.I2 in the amount of 

$46,285.27 dated 06/2312011. (CP 398-400). 

Miller's Motion for Reconsideration of Judgment Awarding Sanctions 

06123/2011. After the judgment was entered awarding sanctions 13 Miller 

filed a Motion for Reconsiderationl4 of the court's award of judgment for 

sanctions dated 06/23/2011. (CP 394). 

a. Declaration of Miller dated 07/08/2011 (CP 523-530). 

b. Memorandum of authorities dated 07/0812011. (CP531-

544). 

13. Miller's motion to allow oral argument on motion for 

reconsideration dated 0711112011. (CP 550-551). 

a. Miller's declaration in support of oral argument on motion 

for reconsideration. (CP 547-549) 

14. Miller's motion dated 07114/2011 to strike plaintiff's 

memorandum in response to motion for reconsideration. (CP 591) 

12 The law firm was dissolved in 2009. 

I3 Which was, the record shows, for time the plaintiffs attorney claims to have spent 

gathering the same information contained in attorney McMahon's letter dated 06/25/2005 

(CP 47-48). 

14 This motion was subsequently granted September 16, 2011, and the trial court 
subsequently entered various additional pleadings which are also at issue in this appeal 
and are discussed below. 
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a. Brief in support. (CP 592-595) 

b. Miller's declaration. (CP 596-599), 

Trial court ordered June 2006 hearing transcribed. At the reconsideration 

hearing on July 14,2011 Judge Tompkins finally realized plaintiffs' 

attorney had been misleading her regarding Judge Austin's prior decisions, 

and ordered Miller to have the hearing from 06/2312005 transcribed. In the 

interim, she ordered that the judgments for sanctions would be 

"suspended" and, therefore, unenforceable, until she had an opportunity to 

review Judge Austin's actual ruling. 

15. Order dated 0711412011 "suspending" all judgments for sanctions 

pending review of the June 2006 hearing with Judge Austin. (CP 

589). 

a. Transcript of oral ruling at 07114/2011 hearing. (CP 716-

b. Courtroom Minutes. (CP 590). 

First appeal notice filed following June 2006 judgment. However, there 

seemed to be no provision in the court rules that determined whether the 

deadline for filing an appeal was affected by an order "suspending" 

15 Judge Tompkins made a statement during the hearing that is critically important to at 
least one aspect of this appeal. She asserted that determining who was the registered 
owner of the vehicle driven by William Vue would determine liability, but legal 
ownership would not affect liability. (CP 716-726 at CP 718 11.13-15). 
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enforcement of a judgment. Therefore the judgment awarding sanctions 

that had been entered (CP 398-400) was deemed to be final and Miller 

filed a notice of appeal pursuant to RAP 5.1 16• 

16. Notice of Appeal with attachments dated 07119/2011. (CP 600-

610). 

Although Judge Austin's court reporter had also retired, she was able to 

provide a transcript from the hearing on June 23, 2006 in which Judge 

Austin declined to sign plaintiff s proposed findings of fact and 

conclusions oflaw that purported to impose sanctions17• 

17. Transcript of June 23, 2006 hearing before Judge Austin-

transcript filed on 07/28/2011. (CP 681-715). 

The trial court's letter ruling addressing June 2006 hearing transcript. 

After reviewing the transcript Judge Tompkins issued a letter ruling dated 

08/01/2011 stating in part, "This Transcript casts doubt on the finality of 

the two earlier written memo decisions of Judge Austin18 which have been 

the foundation for this court 's rulings to date. It also underscores the 

16 Plaintiffs did not file a notice of cross appeal. 
17 The version proposed by the plaintiffs in 2006 included sanctions against defendant 
William Vue and attorneys J. Scott Miller and Crystal Spielman. Subsequent iterations of 
the same proposed findings and conclusions asked for sanctions against different 
individuals and entities. 
18 CP 29-31 [regarding Farmers Insurance motion to intervene] and CP 32-37 [regarding 
requested sanctions against defendants Vue, the former law firm of Miller, Devlin, 
McLean & Weaver, P.S. as well as attorneys Spielman and Miller, individually.] 
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importance of the question of whether the sanctions issue is or is not 

necessarily linked to the dismissal vacation/liability issues." (CP 727-

728). 

Additional briefing filed regarding Miller's Motion for Reconsideration. 

Judge Tompkins letter opinion also set a hearing date of 0911612011 to 

address the issues raised by the June 23, 2006 transcript. The parties filed 

various briefs on the subject. 

18. Defendant Vue's memorandum of authorities dated 09/02/2011. 

(CP 729-735). 

19. Miller's memorandum of authorities dated 09/0212011. (CP 737-

742). 

20. Plaintiff's Memorandum dated 09/0912011 with exhibits. (CP 743-

770). 

21. Defendant Vue's reply memorandum dated 0911412011. (CP 771-

774). 

22. Miller's reply brief dated 09114/2011. (CP 776-784). 

September 16, 2011 hearing on Motion for Reconsideration. Judge 

Tomkins acknowledged that the entire matter should have been concluded 
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with attorney McMahon's June 29, 2005 letter l9 . (CP 816-820). She also 

recognized that the confusion originated with the plaintiffs' attorney's 

incorrect designation of the Vue's family relationship. (CP 817, 11. 11-20_. 

23. Courtroom Minutes from Evidentiary Hearing on 09/16/2011. (CP 

785) 

24. Hearing transcript. (CP 786-820). 

25. Findings of fact and conclusions oflaw, dated 1011412011, drafted 

by Judge Tompkins imposing sanctions of reasonable attorney fees 

through June 29, 2005 in the amount of$22,550 dated 10114/2011. 

(CP 822-827) 

26. Judgment summary20 solely against "J. Scott Miller of Miller, 

Devlin & McLean, P.S." dated 10/14/2011. (CP 828-829) 

Miller's Motion for Reconsideration ofthe October Judgment. 

Following entry of the second judgment in October, 2011 the parties 

filed additional briefing regarding the revised award of sanctions. 

27. Miller's motion for reconsideration and objection to calculation of 

attorney fees dated 10/2512011. (CP 843). 

19 CP 47-48 
20 After realizing the trial court had entered only a judgment summary but no judgment, 
plaintiffs filed a motion for entry of judgment dated 11104/2011. (CP 850) with 
memorandum of authorities with attachments. (CP 851-667). 
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a. Memorandum of authorities. (CP 844-847) 

b. Miller declaration. (CP 848-849). 

28. Court's 10/25/2011 letter acknowledging Miller's motion for 

reconsideration of findings and conclusions and judgment 

summary dated 10114/2011, and setting briefing schedule. (CP 

842). 

29. Miller reply brief in support of reconsideration dated 11114/2011. 

(CP 925-929). 

30. Court's order on reconsideration dated 11122/2011 "to clarify the 

court's decision." (CP 931-935). 

31. Amended Judgment Summary and Judgment dated 1112212011 . 

(CP 936-938) 

Motion to vacate June judgments filed 11/08/2011. Although the court had 

entered amended findings and conclusions, the June judgments were still 

"suspended." Therefore it was necessary for the trial court to vacate those 

judgments. The hearing was held 11110/2011 (while the motion for 

reconsideration was pending). 

32. Miller notice of joinder and motion to vacate judgment. (CP 868). 

a. Objection and motion to strike plaintiffs untimely motion 

to enter judgment.(CP 869) 

15 



b. Brief in support. (CP 917-920). 

c. Order dated 11110/2011 vacating June, 2011 judgment 

against Miller and Former law firm of Miller, Devlin 

McLean and Weaver, P.S. 

d. Courtroom Minutes dated 11110/2011 

e. Order dated 11 110/2011 granting motion for order vacating 

judgment. 

Appeal from 11122/2011 Amended Judgment. Miller filed the second 

notice of appeal following the trial court's 11122/2011 entry of the order 

on reconsideration (CP 931-935) and amended judgment (CP 936-938). 

33 . Notice of Appeal dated 12/22/2011 with attachments. (CP 939-

949). 

Miller's RAP 7.2(e) motion. Subsequent to filing the Notice of Appeal in 

December, 2011 it became apparent that all the substantive actions taken 

by Judge Tompkins after July 19,2011 were potentially void because of 

Miller's pending appeal on dating back to 07/19/2011. Consequently on 

02103/2012 this court entered a Commissioner's Ruling granted Miller's 
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motion filed pursuant to RAP 7.2( e )21, thereby authorizing nunc pro tunc 

the following actions taken by the trial court: 

a. 07114/2011 Order suspending judgment. (CP 589) 

b. 10/14/2011 Findings and Conclusions. (CP 822-827) 

c. 10/14/2011 Judgment summary. (CP 828-829) 

d. 1111 0111 Order vacating June jUdgment22. (CP 922) 

e. 1111012011 Order granting motion to vacate judgment. (CP 

923-924)23 

f. 11122/2011 Order on reconsideration. (CP 931-935) 

g. Amended judgment summary and judgment against J. Scott 

Miller individually and the [dissolved] law firm of Miller, 

Devlin, McLean & Weaver, P.S. (CP 936-938) 

b. Facts 

The underlying case arose from a collision between two vehicles that

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