RECEIVED

JUL 06 2012

FILED

LAW OFFICES OF J. SCOTT MILLER, PLLC

JUL 0 6 2012

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGTON By

Court of Appeals No. 300935-III

Spokane County Superior Court Cause No. 03206739-8

JAMES W. and JUDY D. AASEBY, husband and wife,

Respondents/Cross-Appellants,

V.

WILLIAM VUE, et. al,

Defendants,

J. SCOTT MILLER of Law Offices of J. Scott Miller, PLLC

Appellant.

RESPONDENTS/CROSS-APPELLANTS' BRIEF

Michael J. Delay WSBA No. 18692 Michael J. Delay, P.S. 10 N. Post, Suite 301 Spokane, Washington 99201 509.624.3300 Attorney for Respondents/Cross-Appellants

RECEIVED

JUL 06 2012

FILED

LAW OFFICES OF J. SCOTT MILLER, PLLC

JUL 0 6 2012

I. INTRODUCTION

Attorney J. Scott Miller, Appellant, was former President of the dissolved law firm Miller, Devlin, McLean & Weaver, P.S., Inc. J. Scott Miller (hereafter 'Miller') appeals the imposition of monetary sanctions for wrongfully certifying his signed Answer and for wrongfully certifying inaccurate and false answers to interrogatories and responses to requests for production. Miller would later attempt to withdraw as counsel for his clients without proper notice. A Notice of Intent to Withdraw as Counsel, (CP 14), was filed by Miller. It violated CR 71(c)(1). Respondents/Cross-Appellants (Plaintiffs) objected to Miller's withdrawal to avoid further prejudice (CP 16)². After timely written objection, (CP 16), an order of the court was required to permit Miller's withdrawal. An order of the court was not obtained by Miller as required by CR 71(c)(4).

2 Plaintiffs' objection:

Plaintiffs object to the withdrawal of Defendants' counsel...counsel of record that signed answers to interrogatories pursuant to CR 26(g) and CR 11(a), in which the Defendants under oath misrepresented insurance coverages in effect at the time of collision and for which the Plaintiffs are currently seeking damages and an order vacating and setting aside the Stipulated Order of Dismissal with Prejudice. Counsel of record for Defendants is aware of this pending motion and seeks to withdraw before the motion is decided; such withdrawal would further prejudice Plaintiffs (CP 16).

¹ Mr. Miller's law firms: Miller, Devlin, et.al., of which he was a named senior partner and President until the firm ceased in 2008; and, thereafter, 'Law Offices of J. Scott Miller, PLLC', of which he is the sole managing member (CP 389, 2160-1). The firms are registered under and operated from the same physical address and with the same President and Managing Member, Miller (CP 389-92, 2160).

A personal injury lawsuit was commenced against a tortfeasor-driver, William Vue ('defendant'), and his natural parents, the registered owners of the family car. It was believed, at the time of commencement, that the parents of William Vue were Vilay and Agnes Vue, husband and wife ('defendants') (CP 3, ¶ 1.3). After litigation was commenced by the Respondents/Cross-Appellants, James and Judy Aaseby, husband and wife (hereafter 'Aasebys'), the Vues retained defense counsel, Miller.

The defense provided by Miller, from the very start of the litigation in 2003, completely misled the trial court. Miller misled his clients, the Vues, and the Aasebys, the Plaintiffs, from the very start of litigation, as well. This occurred when Miller performed no inquiry or investigation. Also, Miller ignored changes made by his clients to discovery responses. Miller would represent just the opposite to the trial court and to the Aasebys when it was claimed that he had, in fact, performed due diligence and had, in fact, performed a reasonable inquiry *before* responding to discovery and when filing various pleadings throughout these proceedings. As a result, Miller's lack of an inquiry during discovery and his signed pleadings all contained inaccurate and completely false information which was provided to the trial court and to the Aasebys throughout these proceedings. Sanctions were imposed on Miller by the trial court for 'significant violations' of CR 11(a) and 26(g) (CP 934, ¶B. (1)).

The inaccurate information and false statements provided by Miller occurred at every stage of litigation, beginning in 2003. It has continued to the present. For this Court's benefit, the stages of these proceedings were broken down, below, into *five* stages. Each stage appears in chronological order. The very first stage of the misconduct was *Miller's Pleadings*. The next stage of Miller's misconduct was *Certified Responses to Discovery*. A third stage of Miller's misconduct was during the *Re-opening of the Litigation*. The trial court's *Conclusions of Law B and C* did not reflect the record. The fifth and final stage of Miller's misconduct was during *Supersedeas Proceedings*.

II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

Assignments of Error

- No. 1: The trial court erred in entering an Amended Judgment on November 22, 2011.
- No. 2: The trial court erred in denying Aasebys' motion to revise the trial court's Conclusions of Law B and C, entered on October 14, 2011.
- No. 3: The trial court erred in striking the law firm of J. Scott Miller, PLLC, from its Judgment entered June 23, 2011.
- No. 4: The trial court erred in entering an Order on April 3, 2012, denying Aasebys' cross-motion for CR 11 sanctions.

Issues Pertaining to Assignments of Error

- No. 1: Should the trial court award reasonable attorney fees and costs as sanctions for counsel's violation of CR 11 and 26(g) for the entire proceedings?
- No. 2: Should the trial court's conclusions of law have been revised to reflect the record of proceedings?
- No. 3: Were both law firms liable that employed the same senior partner that violated CR 11(a) and 26(g) during the entire proceedings?
- No. 4: Did counsel violate CR 11(a) in responding to a supersedeas motion?

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Miller's Pleadings - No Inquiry

Litigation was commenced by the Aasebys after a motor vehicle collision. It was commenced against the Vue family members when filed on October 16, 2003 (CP 1-6). On November 3, 2003, Miller filed his Notice of Appearance (CP 960). The Notice of Appearance was signed by Miller (CP 960). He signed as counsel for all of the defendant Vues as named and identified by the Aasebys' *Verified*³ Complaint for Damages (CP 3-6). Miller's signed Notice of Appearance did not correct the familial

³ On pg. 4 of the Aasebys' Verified Complaint for Damages (CP 6):

We are the Plaintiffs in this action. We have read the preceding Complaint for damages, know its contents and believe it to be true and correct.

Wayne and Judy Aaseby, Plaintiffs, signed below the above statement.

relationships of the Vue family members. No inquiry had been conducted by Miller at the time of filing his Notice of Appearance. If one had been conducted, the family members that Miller represented would have been revealed differently then was identified in Miller's Notice of Appearance (CP 960) and by the Verified Complaint.

On January 5, 2004, Miller filed his Answer (CP 7-10) to the Aasebys' Verified Complaint for Damages. If, pursuant to CR 11(a), he had conducted a reasonable inquiry Miller would have been informed of the facts about his clients, when filing his Notice of Appearance and when filing an Answer on his clients, the Vue family (William, Vilay and Agnes Vue) behalf. If any inquiry at all was made by Miller, he would have been informed that the basic and key facts he admitted as true in his Answer were indeed inaccurate and completely false.⁴

4 In his opening brief, Miller would assert blame for his lack of an inquiry, required under our civil rules. Lack of an inquiry by Miller was, according to Miller, the fault of the Vues and/or Aasebys' counsel, per pg. 22 of his brief:

Before the case was settled and dismissed no information was provided by the Vues or plaintiffs' attorney Mike Delay that

(a) The Answer was incorrect in admitting allegations in the Complaint, or

(b) That interrogatory responses were incomplete. ...

Miller's duties and legal obligations under CR 1, 11(a), 26(b)(2), (e) and (g) and 71(c)(1) and (4) were not voluntary or optional.

Key and basic facts were contained in the caption of the Aasebys' Summons (CP 1). These and other key facts were expressly alleged in their *Verified* Complaint for Damages (CP 3-4):

- 1.3 Defendants, Vilay and Agnes Vue, are husband and wife and residents of Spokane County, Washington. Plaintiffs believe Vilay and Agnes Vue are the natural parents of the Defendant [William Vue]. (CP 3)
- 3.1 The **registered owners** of the vehicle driven by the Defendant are believed to be **Vilay and Agnes Vue**, named defendants herein. (CP 4)
- 3.3 Defendant was the driver of a 1983 Honda 4-door sedan, with the **permission of the registered owners**, defendants Vilay and Agnes Vue. (CP 4)
- 3.6 Both vehicles were totaled from impact. Defendant paid for the property damage sustained by Plaintiffs' Cheverolet Lumina. (CP 4)

In response to the above allegations by the Aasebys, Miller admitted as true as to all of the above allegations, as follows (CP 8):

- 1.3 These Defendants admit the same.
- 3.1 Admit.
- 3.3 Admit.
- 3.6 Admit

The Answer was signed by Miller. It was signed as legal counsel for the entire Vue family (CP 7, 10; and CP 960). It was certified as true by Miller, pursuant to CR 11(a). The admissions certified by Miller as true

were in fact not true. The Aasebys relied on the admissions, above. The truth of the matter was that the Vues, William, Vilay and Agnes, were all *siblings*. Vilay and Agnes Vue were not husband and wife. The parents of the Vues were not Vilay and Agnes but *Cheu and Pai Vue*. The registered owner of the car driven by the defendant, William Vue, was not Vilay and Agnes Vue, husband and wife. Miller did not amend or later correct his Notice of Appearance or his Answer.

Aasebys relied on Miller's signed Answer (CP 7-10) and his Notice of Appearance (CP 960). The trial court relied as well when it signed and entered a Stipulation and Order of Dismissal (CP 11-12). The Order was prepared, signed and presented by Miller (CP 12), pursuant to CR 11. The Order of Dismissal (CP 12) was signed by the Aasebys based on the above admissions and discovery responses, below, all verified as true by Miller or Miller's agent and newly licensed associate, Crystal Spielman.

Certified Discovery Responses – No Inquiry

Discovery was conducted by the Aasebys in 2003-4. On November 3, 2003, Aasebys had served on Miller written Interrogatories and Requests for Production Propounded to The Defendants – William Vue,

and Vilay and Agnes Vue, husband and wife (CP 233). They were pursuant to CR 26(b), 33 and 34 (CP 233).

Unbeknownst to the Aasebys, at the time, Miller had inserted into each interrogatory and request for production propounded by the Aasebys and to the Vues (William, Vilay and Agnes Vue) pertaining to insurance and pertaining to any documents affecting coverage under any policy of insurance for the Vues: 'Attorney Will Answer' (CP 231-7). This fact was not revealed by Miller. It was not revealed to the Aasebys and the trial court until 2011 by David Force, new counsel for the Vues (CP 223, ¶3).

Aasebys' interrogatories and requests for production had inquired into insurance for each of the Vue family members as William Vue had mentioned Farmers at the scene in 2000. Additionally, the Aasebys discovery had inquired into the registered owner of the vehicle driven by the defendant, William Vue (CP 233-7). Aasebys' discovery was propounded to each of the Vues. Miller's instruction in 2003 to the Vues after each of the interrogatories follows, in bold:

- 14. <u>INTERROGATORY</u>: Do any insurance or indemnification agreements or policies exist that may satisfy part or all of a judgment that may be entered in this action; or to indemnify or reimburse for payments made to satisfy such award/judgment? If so, please state as to each insurance policy or indemnification agreement:
- (a) Name, address and telephone number of insurer or indemnitor;

- (b) Name, address and telephone number of each named insured or indemnitee;
- (c) Each type of coverage provided;
- (d) Applicable limits of the type of coverage provided;
- (e) Amount of deductible on each coverage;
- (f) Policy period coverage; and
- (g) Policy number.

ANSWER:

ATTORNEY WILL ANSWER

1. <u>REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION</u>: Please produce all insurance and indemnification agreements or policies identified in response to the preceding interrogatory, including all applicable declaration pages, endorsements and amendments.

ANSWER:

ATTORNEY WILL ANSWER

2. <u>REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION:</u> Please produce any other documents affecting insurance coverage (such as any documents denying coverage, extending coverage, or reserving rights), from or on behalf of any person carrying on an insurance business, to any defendant or covered person, or such person's representative.

ANSWER:

ATTORNEY WILL ANSWER

15. <u>INTERROGATORY</u>: Have any of the insurers or indemnitors identified in your response to the preceding interrogatories denied in whole or in part coverage or indemnification for any of the Aaseby's claims, or accepted defense of this action upon a reservation of rights? If so, please state as to each:

- (a) Name, address and telephone number of the insurer or indemnitor;
- (b) Contract language upon which the insurer or indemnitor bases its denial of coverage, indemnification or reservation of rights; and
- (c) Reasons for the insurer's or indemnitor's denial of coverage, indemnification or reservation or rights.

ANSWER:

ATTORNEY WILL ANSWER

(CP 234-7).

In addition to the above, Aasebys' discovery (32 pages) also inquired into information *personal* to each of the Vues. Miller could not possibly answer (accurately) the Aasebys' discovery without input from each of the Vues. A letter to the Vues would be revealed to the Aasebys in 2011, wherein Miller instructed the Vues on November 5, 2003:

Some questions are stamped "Attorney Will Answer." The answers to these questions will be completed by our office. ... (CP 231)⁵

The discovery responses were prepared by and signed by William Vue, ...

Also, contrary to pg. 3, footnote 2, is the Declaration of William Vue (CP 1407):

⁵ Contrary to Miller's letter to the Vues in 2003 (CP 231), is his opening brief, at pg. 3, footnote 2:

^{11.} I was never given an opportunity to review the final answers to Plaintiffs' interrogatories. Additionally, I was never given an opportunity to review the Answer to Plaintiffs' [Verified] Complaint. Furthermore, I never met with Mr. Miller or any other attorney to go over the answers to Interrogatories, Answer, or any other aspect of this case.

A notation was made in December, 2003 by a paralegal for Miller when meeting with William Vue to correct the Vue relationships⁶ (CP 1423, ¶ 7; CP 1426). A correction was requested by William Vue in 2003. It was expected to be incorporated into the answers and responses to discovery (CP 1423, ¶7). The corrections to the Aasebys' discovery responses as to basic and key facts about the Vues were *not* made by Miller (CP 1423, ¶7).

It was represented, *under oath*, to the Aasebys that a reasonable inquiry and due diligence were made *prior* to responding to the Aasebys' discovery, including the discovery requests for any insurance policies. The Vues' insurance disclosed during discovery and their certified discovery responses provided to the Aasebys were as follows (CP 1068):

1. <u>INTERROGATORY</u>: **Prior** to responding to these discovery requests, have you **thoroughly researched** and identified **every document** and made inquiry of every person, employee or agent having knowledge of the information and subject matter sought by these discovery requests?

ANSWER:

YES

-

⁶ William Vue met with a paralegal, Justin Whittekiend, to prepare draft answers to discovery. At that time, William corrected the caption and he or the paralegal wrote on the draft answers that Vilay was his brother and Agnes was his sister. (CP 1423, ¶ 7; and 1426). As instructed by Miller, (CP 231), William Vue did not provide any information about insurance (CP 1407, ¶ 9).

- 14. <u>INTERROGATORY</u>: Do any insurance or indemnification agreements or policies exist that may satisfy part or all of a judgment that may be entered in this action; or to indemnify or reimburse for payments made to satisfy such award/judgment? If so, please state as to each insurance policy or indemnification agreement:
- (a) Name, address and telephone number of insurer or indemnitor:
- (b) Name, address and telephone number of each named insured or indemnitee;
- (c) Each type of coverage provided;
- (d) Applicable limits of the type of coverage provided;
- (e) Amount of deductible on each coverage;
- (f) Policy period coverage; and
- (g) Policy number.

ANSWER:

- (a) Allstate
- (b) Vilay Vue
- (c) Liability/property
- (d) \$25,000/\$50,000/\$10,000
- (e) None
- (f) 9/21/00 3/21/01
- (g) 064355033
- 1. <u>REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION</u>: Please produce all insurance and indemnification agreements or policies identified in response to the preceding interrogatory, including all applicable declaration pages, endorsements and amendments.

ANSWER:

See attached. [Allstate policy, only, was attached.]

(CP 1069).

2. <u>REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION:</u> Please produce any other documents affecting insurance coverage (such as any documents denying coverage, extending coverage, or reserving rights), from or on behalf of any person carrying on an insurance business, to any defendant or covered person, or such person's representative.

ANSWER:

None.

(CP 1069-70).

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